
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This Settlement Agreement ("Settlement Agreement" or "Agreement") is made

by and between Snake River Waterkeeper (hereafter, "Watei-keeper") and the

United States Army Corps of Engineers and Lieutenant General Scott A. Spellmon,

in his official capacity as the Commanding General and Chief of Engineers of the

United States Army Corps of Engineers (collectively, the "Corps" or

"Defendants"). In this Settlement Agreement, Waterkeeper and the Corps may

collectively be referred to as "Parties" and may be referred to individually as a

« ,~arty;

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2021, Waterkeeper filed a Complaint in the United

States District Court for the District of Idaho (Case No. 3 :21-cv-001 O l -DCN);

WHEREAS, the Complaint asserts that the Corps discharges pollutants from the

Dworshalc Dam and Reservoir Hydroelectric Project, including associated

structures and facilities such as powerhouse drainage sumps, unwatering sumps,

spillway sumps, wicket gate bearings, and cooling water systems, which the Corps
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owns and operates in Idaho, allegedly in violation of section 301(a) of the Clean

Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a)';

WHEREAS, the Complaint seeks declaratory and injunctive relief and an award

of Waterkeeper's litigation costs as authorized by section 505(d) of the CWA, 33

U.S.C. § 1365(d);

WHEREAS, this Settlement Agreement resolves the claims alleged and relief

sought in the Complaint;

WHEREAS, the Corps has in place a Spill Prevention Control and

Countermeasure ("SPCC") plan at the Dworshak Dain, which plan addresses oil

spill prevention, preparedness, and response intended to prevent or minimize oil

spills to navigable waters and adjoining shorelines, and the Corps conducts annual

drills intended to ensure that it has appropriate capability to respond to such spills;

WHEREAS, Defendants currently use Environmentally Acceptable Lubricants,

as defined in Section II, Subparagraph 4(c) below, on certain components or

equipment at the Dworshak Dam;

~ Hereafter, the terms "Dworshak Dam" "Dworshak," and "Dam" are used

interchangeably to refer to the same project, which includes the associated dam

structures and facilities.
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WHEREAS, in February 2019, the Corps submitted an application to the United

States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") for a National Pollutant

Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") permit for the Dworshak Dam, which

application remains pending;

WHEREAS, Waterkeeper and the Corps have agreed to this Settlement

Agreement without any admission of fact or law;

WHEREAS, Waterkeeper and the Corps consider this Settlement Agreement to

be a fair, adequate, and reasonable resolution of the claims that were or potentially

could have been raised in the case regarding alleged discharges of pollutants from

the Dwoi-shak Darn; and

WHEREAS, Waterkeeper and the Corps believe that it is in the interest of the

public, the Parties, and judicial economy to enter into this Settlement Agreement

rather than engage in protracted litigation;

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties, by and through their undersigned counsel,

hereby agree upon the following settlement terms and conditions:

I. Parties Bound.

1. This Settlement Agreement applies to, is binding upon, and inures to

the benefit of the Parties and their successors, assigns, and designees.
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II. The Corps' Obli ate ions.

2. The Corps shall diligently respond to any requests from EPA related

to the Dworshak NPDES permit application and the Corps shall otherwise take

whatever reasonable steps are necessary, in good faith, to facilitate the prompt

issuance of an NPDES permit for the Dam. Starting six months from the Effective

Date of this Agreement, the Corps shall submit written requests to EPA every six

months, with copies provided to Waterkeeper at the same time, for an update on

the status of that permit application. The Corps' obligations to submit such

requests shall terminate when EPA takes final action on the NPDES permit

application or in the event that Waterkeeper commences an action pursuant to

paragraph 8 below, whichever is earlier.

3. The Corps shall notify Waterkeeper of those events that the Corps

reports to the National Response Center pursuant to the Corps' SPCC plan for the

Dworshak Dam; provided, however, that the Corps' obligation to provide such

notification shall terminate when the Corps obtains NPDES permit coverage that

addresses discharges of pollutants associated with operations at the Dam or in the

event that Waterkeeper commences an action pursuant to paragraph 8 below,

whichever is earlier. Such notifications to Waterkeeper may be provided via email,

and shall be made promptly and in no instance later than three calendar days from
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the Corps' discovery of the event. The Corps' notification to Waterkeeper shall not

constitute an admission by the Corps of a discharge of any pollutant in violation of

the C WA or any other law.

4. (a) Within six months of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the

Corps shall con7plete an assessment and report addressing whether it is feasible to

switch from using grease as a lubricant on certain "in-water" components at the

Dworshak Dam to using: components that do not require lubrication ("Non-

Lubricated Components" or "NLCs"); or one or more "Environmentally

Acceptable Lubricants" ("EALs"). Based on that assessment and report, and within

six months of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the Corps also shall prepare a

projected schedule for completing those switches (if any) to Non-Lubricated

Components or- EALs that (i) are deemed to be feasible in the assessment and

report and (ii) can be completed during regularly scheduled maintenance within

five years of the Effective Date of this Settlement Agreement. The projected

schedule shall not be binding on the Corps or enforceable by Waterkeeper or the

Court, but the Corps shall complete the actions identified in the projected schedule

even in the event that operational requirements, including, but not limited to,

unplanned outages, Endangered Species Act or other flow obligations, and power

grid reliability, prevent the Corps from adhering to the timeline in the projected
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schedule; provided, however, that, if Waterkeeper commences an action against the

Corps regarding alleged unpermitted discharges of pollutants from the Dworshak

Dain as discussed in paragraph 8 below, then the Corps shall not be obligated to

complete those actions identified in the projected schedule that have not been

completed on the date that Waterlceeper commences such action. Neither the

assessment and report nor the projected schedule trust address components or

equipment for which the Coi-ps already has switched to using NLCs or EALs. The

Corps will provide a copy of the assessment and report of feasibility to

Waterkeeper upon its completion.

(b) The assessment and report, and the projected schedule, will be

developed solely by the Corps, taking into consideration: consistency with meeting

applicable legal requirements, including but not limited to the Endangered Species

Act; facility operational requirements; costs of conversion; risk of potential

damage to the equipment; and maintenance and outage schedules.

(c) As used in this paragraph, "Environmentally Acceptable

Lubricants" (or "EALs") means those lubricants that have been demonstrated to

meet industry standards for biodegradability, toxicity, and bioaccumulation

potential that minimize their likely adverse consequences in the aquatic

environment compared to conventional lubricants.
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5. The Corps shall prepare annual accountability reports that: account for

all oils and greases delivered to the Dworshak Dam within the prior calendar year

to lubricate "in-water•" components that may contact the North Fork Clearwater

River or Clearwater River; and include the volumes of such oils and greases stored,

purchased, used, recovered, and disposed of during that year. The Corps shall

prepare the first such annual report by February 14, 2022, with available

information from the 2021 calendar year, and subsequently shall prepare annual

reports for every calendar year thereafter, until such time as the Corps obtains

NPDES permit coverage for the Dworshak Dam or in the event that Waterkeeper

commences an action pursuant to paragraph 8 below, whichever is earlier. The

Corps shall make copies of the annual reports publicly available on a Corps

website. In addition, the Corps shall prepare an interim report within six months of

the Effective Date of this Agreement, with available information from the 2020

calendar year. These reports shall not constitute concessions or admissions by the

Corps.

6. Without any admission of law or fact, within 120 days after the

Corps' receipt of correct payment and deposit information described below from

Waterkeeper or• within 120 days after the Effective Date of this Settlement

Agreement, whichever is later, Defendants shall pay to Waterkeeper the amount of
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$ 30,000.00 by Electronic Funds Transfer ("EFT"). Waterkeeper's counsel shall

provide the following payment and deposit information to counsel for the Corps:

EFT Payable to
Bank name
Bank address

ABA Routing number

Account number

Naive and Type (Checking or Savings) of Account

Taxpayer identification number.

Waterkeeper hereby releases any and all claims and potential claims under any

statute or other authority, including, but not limited, to 33 U.S.C. § 1365(d), for

costs of litigation, attorney fees, expert fees, court costs, and other costs or fees

accrued through the Effective Date of this Settlement Agreement in connection

with Case No. 3:21-cv-00101-DCN.

III. Dismissal of Claims and Releases.

7. The Parties agree that this Settlement Agreement represents a good

faith compromise of all matters addressed in this Settlement Agreement. Upon

execution of this Settlement Agreement, the Parties shall file an agreed-upon joint

motion and proposed order providing that Case No. 3:21-cv-00101-DCN shall be

dismissed without prejudice pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 41, subject to the

provisions of this Settlement Agreement. This Settlement Agreement shall be null

and void if the Court does not dismiss Case No. 3:21-cv-001 O1-DCN in
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accordance with the terms set forth in the agreed-upon joint motion and proposed

order•.

8. Notwithstanding dismissal of this case without prejudice, Waterkeeper

hereby releases, discharges and covenants not to assert (by way of commencement

or refiling of any action, the joinder of the Corps in an existing action, or in any

other fashion) any and all claims, causes of action, suits or demands of any kind in

law or in equity regarding alleged unpermitted discharges of pollutants from the

Dwol-shak Dam until either: (i) the Corps obtains NPDES permit coverage that

addresses discharges of pollutants associated with operations at the Dain; or (ii)

four• years after the Effective Date of this Settlement Agreement, whichever is

earlier. In the event that Waterkeeper commences any action against the Corps

after the passage of time under the preceding clause (ii), any remaining obligations

of the Corps under- this Settlement Agreement shall terminate. Neither Party will

take any action for the sole purpose of obstructing or delaying the issuance of an

NPDES permit for the Dam.

IV. Force Maieure.

9. The possibility exists that circumstances outside the reasonable

control of the Corps could delay compliance with the timetables set forth in this

Agreement. Such circumstances include, but are not limited to, sufficient funds not
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being appropriated as requested, the unavailability of appropriated funds for

expenditure, government shutdown, pandemic, and significant events that are

outside of normal fluctuations in Dam operations and that require an immediate

and/or tir-ne-consuming response by the Corps, including, but not limited to,

significant events related to electrical power needs, flow augmentation actions, or

actual or potential flooding. Should a delay occur due to such circumstances, then

any resulting failure to meet the deadlines or• other terms set forth in this

Settlement Agreement shall not constitute a failure to comply with those deadlines

or other terms, and any deadlines so affected shall be extended one day for each

day of the delay. The Corps will provide Waterkeeper with reasonable notice in the

event that the Corps invokes this Force Majeure term. Any dispute regarding

invocation or the applicability of this provision shall be resolved in accordance

with the Dispute Resolution provisions of Section V below.

V. Dispute Resolution.

10. The Parties agree that efforts shall be made to resolve any future

dispute arising out of this Settlement Agreement (the "Dispute") in accordance

with the procedures specified below.

(a) Negotiation. In the event of a disagreement between

Waterkeeper and the Corps concerning the interpretation oi- performance of any
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aspect of this Settlement Agreement, the dissatisfied Party shall provide the other

Panty with written notice of the Dispute and a request for• informal negotiations.

The Parties shall meet and confer in a good faith effort to attempt to resolve the

Dispute within thirty (30) days of receipt of the written notice or such time

thereafter as is mutually agreed.

(b) Petition for Judicial Resolution. If the Parties are unable to

resolve the Dispute informally within thirty (30) days of receipt of the wiitten

notice or such time thereafter as is mutually agreed, then either Waterkeeper or the

Corps may petition the Court to resolve the Dispute. The Parties shall follow the

motion practice procedures prescribed by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and

the Local Rules for the District Court for the District of Idaho in presenting the

Dispute to the Court, and a Party's response to a petition under this provision may

include across-motion under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 60. The Court shall

retain jurisdiction over this case foi• the sole purpose of resolving those disputes

over which Waterkeeper or the Corps may petition the Court. See Kokkonen v.

Guardian Life Ins. Co. ofAm., 51 1 U.S. 375 (1994). Notwithstanding any other

provision of this Settlement Agreement, however, Waterkeeper and the Corps

expressly preserve, and do not waive or limit, any and all defenses relating to such
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litigation, including any that may exist under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 60.

Contempt of court is not an available remedy under this Settlement Agreement.

(c) Confidentialit. ~o ~otiations and Mediation. All informal

negotiations and related communications and proceedings conducted pursuant to

subparagraph (a) of this pat-agraph 10 are confidential and shall be treated as

compromise and settlement negotiations for the purposes of applicable rules of

evidence and any additional confidentiality protections provided by applicable law.

VI. Miscellaneous Provisi

1 1. Any notice required or made with respect to this Settlement

Agreement shall be in writing (including email) and shall be effective upon receipt.

Any notice or- other documents required pursuant to this Settlement Agreement

shall be sent to the following contact persons:

For Waterkeeper:

F.S. Buck Ryan

Snake River Waterkeeper

2123 N. 16th Street

Boise, Idaho 83702

(208) 806-1303

Email: buck@snakeriverwaterkeeper.org

For the Corps:

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

Northwestern Division

Attn: Office of Counsel

1201 NE Lloyd Blvd., Suite 400

Portland, Oregon 97232

And

And

Brian Alan Knutsen

Kanlpmeier & Knutsen, PLLC

Mark A. Nitczynski

U.S. Department of Justice

Environment &Natural Res. Division
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1300 S.E. Stark Street, Suite 202
Portland, Oregon 97214
Phone: (503) 841-6515
Email: brian@kampmeierknutsen.com

999 18th Street
South Terrace, Suite 370
Denver, CO 80202
Phone: (303) 844-1498
Fax: (303) 844-1350
Email: mark.nitczynski(a~usdoj_,~ov

Upon written notice to the other Parties, any Party may designate a successor

contact person for any matter relating to this Settlement Agreement.

12. Upon fulfillment of the Corps' obligations under this Settlement

Agreement, the Corps' obligations under this Settlement Agreement shall

terminate.

13. Except as expressly provided herein, nothing in this Settlement

Agreement shall be construed to limit or modify the discretion accorded to the

Corps by any laws, including but not limited to the CWA or any other- statutes, or

any principles of administrative law.

14. Nothing in this Settlement Agreement shall constitute an admission or

evidence of any fact, wrongdoing, misconduct, or liability on the part of the Corps,

its officers or any person affiliated with it. The provisions, terms and conditions of

this Settlement Agreement shall not be admissible in any judicial or administrative

proceeding except: (i) in the Corps' defense of a claim, cause of action, suit or

demand asserted by Waterkeeper pursuant to paragraph 8 above; or (ii) in support
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or defense of a petition to the Court submitted by either Party pursuant to

paragraph 10(b) above.

1 5. Waterkeeper recognizes that the Corps' performance under this

Settlement Agt•eement is subject to fiscal and procurement laws and regulations of

the United States which include, but are not limited to, the Anti-Deficiency Act, 31

U.S.C. ~ 1341, et seq., and nothing in this Settlement Agreement shall be

interpreted as oi- constitute a coinmitnlent or• requirement that the Corps obligate or

pay funds in contravention of the Anti-Deficiency Act. In addition, nothing in this

Settlement Agreement shall be interpreted as or constitute a commitment or

requirement that the Corps take actions in contravention of the Administrative

Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 551-559, 701-706, the CWA, Dworshak Darn's

authorizing legislation (Flood Control Act of 1962, Public Law 87-874), or any

other substantive or procedural law or• regulation.

16. If, subsequent to the Effective Date of this Settlement Agreement, any

change in the law or legal requirement goes into effect that alters or relieves the

Corps' obligations concerning matters addressed in this Settlement Agreement,

then the Settlement Agreement shall be amended to conform to such changes. Any

dispute regarding invocation or the applicability of this provision shall be resolved

in accordance with the Dispute Resolution provisions of Section V above.
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17. Except as set forth in this Settlement Agreement, the Parties reserve

and do not waive any and all other legal rights and remedies.

18. This Settlement Agreement shall be governed and construed under the

laws of the United States.

19. This Settlement Agreement constitutes the final, complete and

exclusive agreement and understanding between Waterkeeper and the Corps with

respect to the matters addressed in this Settlement Agreement. There are no

representations, agreements or understandings relating to this settlement other than

those expressly contained in this Settlement Agreement.

20. The Effective Date of this Settlement Agreement shall be the date

upon which the Court enters the order of dismissal proposed by the Parties.

21. The Parties may, in a written document signed by all of the Parties,

modify this Settlement Agreement.

22. The Parties hereby agree that any and all rules of construction to the

effect that ambiguity is construed against the drafting party shall be inapplicable in

any dispute concerning the terms, meaning, or interpretation of this Settlement

Agreement.
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Phone: (503) 841-6515
Email: brian@kampmeierknutsen.com

DATE: ~'''

ATTORNEYS FOR SNAKE RIVER
WATERKEEPER

TODD KIM
Assistant Attorney General
United States Department of Justice
Environment &Natural Resources Division

~%~~ rGC'f'

M A. ~ ~ CZYNSKI
999 18th Street
South Terrace; Suite 3 70
Denver, CO 80202
(303) 844-1498

ATTORNEYS FOR U.S. ARMY CORPS

OF ENGINEERS AND LIEUTENANT

GENERAL SCOTT A. SPELLMON
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